
 
 

MPA Contract A420 
 FY21-24 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM UPDATES AT ALL 
MASSPORT AVIATION FACILITIES, EAST BOSTON, BEDFORD AND 

WORCESTER, MASSACHUSETTS 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 
AUGUST 21, 2020 

 
The attention of consultants submitting proposals for the RFQ is called to the following Responses to 
Questions to the subject RFQ. The items set forth herein, whether of omission, addition, substitution, or 
clarifications are all to be included in and form a part of the proposal submitted.  
 
Responses to Questions: 
 
1. Can you provide us the copy of the existing airside ground traffic modelling document?  If not, 

then can you provide us further details of the required scope of work for Ground Traffic 
Modeling? 
 

The existing information will be made available to the consultant(s) selected. This work involves 
processing data provided by Massport of all airport traffic and determining routes on the airfield 
used to taxi to and from their respective parking areas. The end product is a color-coded plan 
showing annual operations on the respective pavements.  

 
2. Are the existing pavement network definition plans available in electronic format such as CAD 

or another format? 
 

Not at this time. The existing information will be made available to the consultant(s) selected. 
 

3. Is the $1,000,000.00 Project cost for all work orders combined for the contract? 
 
Yes. If more than one consultant is selected, the contract values will be divided based on 
anticipated work assignments. 

 
4. Do all key personnel need to be registered in Massachusetts (P.E.) or just the Project 

Manager? 
 

At a minimum, the project manager should be registered in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 

5. Can we get access to Massachusetts Port Authority’s existing web-based application capable of 
running various PCN and aircraft landing scenarios? 
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Not at this time. The existing information will be made available to the consultant(s) selected. 
 

6. Can we get a copy of the attendees list for the Consultant Briefing if available? 
 

Given the virtual nature of the briefing, no attendee list is available. 
 

7. Were the previous Pavement Condition Index (PCI) inspections done visually or by using the 
Imaging Data Collection Vehicles? 

 
Previous inspections were completed visually. 
 

8. Who did the previous Airport Pavement Management Program? 
 

Applied Research Associates, Inc. 
 

9. Are Insurance Requirements and Litigation and Legal proceedings required items for every 
sub-consultant, or just the prime?   

 
Insurance requirements apply to all parties; Litigation and legal proceedings are only required 
for the prime consultant 

 
10. Is the “current level of work with the Authority, and past performance for the Authority, if 

any” relevant only to the prime consultant, or should the submittal include this information 
for all teaming partners? 
 

Only the prime consultant.  
 

11. What are “SDO” certification letters? 
 
SDO letters are issued by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Supplier Diversity Office to firms 
noting they are certified to perform work as a M/WBE within the state.  

 
12. Are coring/geotechnical services anticipated to be part of the scope? 

 
As noted in the supplemental package, only non-destructive testing in anticipated as part of the 
scope. 
 

13. Is there an anticipated M/WBE percentage for this contract? 
 

There is no M/WBE set percentage for this project. As noted in the supplemental package, the 
proposed percentage should be included in the submittal. 
 

14. Please explain what you are looking for regarding the web-based software capable of running 
various PCNs and aircraft loading scenarios. Is it necessary that there be an available web-
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based analysis for running PCN’s?  Do you just need the PCN’s to be posted or do you need 
the ability to run the analysis also? 

 
Massport would expect the software to be capable of determining the PCNs for various 
pavements based on aircraft demands. (For example, what pavements are suitable for a B747-800 
to park based on varying weight scenarios at a particular area on an airfield?). 
 

15. Can you give a prioritization of the order of the work among the airports?  What type of 
work? 
 
As noted in the RFP, the Fall 2020 field work is slated for L.G. Hanscom Field and Worcester 
Regional Airport. 
 

16. Do you anticipate interviews between the submission and final award? 
 
If we deem it appropriate, Massport will hold interviews, but we do not know at this time. 
 

17. When do you expect that the selection will be made and do you expect that the consultant 
selection be virtual as well? 
 

We are targeting early October for selection. The selection will likely be virtual, depending on the 
pandemic.  Submitters will be notified at the time of selection. 

 
18. You mentioned about using recent technology (LIDR, Drone, Aerials). Are you open to other 

technology?  Have you used any of these technologies on past surveys? Is there a specific 
inspection technology that is requested for the project? 
 
We have not used any of the technologies yet but are open to it.  Massport will evaluate the various 
technologies that are proposed. 
 

19. You mentioned that you want the project to work with the Airport’s GIS System.  Can you 
elaborate on how you see the scope of work interacting with your Airport’s GIS? 

 
We have an ESRI Based system and want to have the ability to overlay the information on our 
system. 

 
20. Could you provide any detail of the scope of work, indicated in the RFQ? 

 
We will not offer any additional information on the scope at this time. 
 

 
----END OF RESPONSES---- 


